
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF JOINT MEETING  
OF THE LITTLE CHUTE AND KIMBERLY VILLAGE BOARDS 

 
DATE:  Monday, October 20, 2025 
TIME:  6:00 p.m. 
PLACE:  515 W. Kimberly Avenue, Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers 

 

1. Call to order  
2. Roll call 
3. Moment of Silent Reflection, Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Approval of Minutes from the 07/21/2025 joint meeting 
5. Public Participation 
6. Fox Valley Metro Police Department 2026 Budget Proposal 
7. Adjournment 

 
 

 
Joint Meeting of Village of Kimberly and Village of Little Chute Boards 

October 20, 2025  

6:00 – 7:00 PM  
 
 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/901598789 

 
You can also dial in using your phone. 

Access Code: 901-598-789 
United States (Toll Free): 1 877 309 2073 

United States: +1 (571) 317-3129 
 
 

Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://meet.goto.com/install 

 

 

Any person wishing to attend the meeting, who because of disability is unable to attend, is requested to contact the ADA 
Coordinator at 920-788-7500 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting so that reasonable accommodations may be made. 
 

https://meet.goto.com/901598789
tel:+18773092073,,901598789
tel:+15713173129,,901598789
https://meet.goto.com/install


VILLAGE OF KIMBERLY and VILLAGE OF LITTLE CHUTE  
JOINT BOARD MEETING MINUTES     
07/21/2025     
     
A joint meeting of the Kimberly Village Board and Little Chute Village Board was called to order on 
Monday, July 21, 2025 at 5:30pm in the Rick J. Hermus Council Chambers, 515 W. Kimberly Ave by 
President Chuck Kuen.      
 
Kimberly  
Board Present: President Chuck Kuen, Trustees Lee Hammen, Norb Karner, Marcia Trentlage, 

Dave Hietpas, Mike Hruzek and Tom Gaffney  
Board Excused: None 
 
Little Chute 
Board Present: President Michael Vanden Berg, Trustees Larry Van Lankvelt, Joe Harlow, 

and Don Van Deurzen, David Peterson, Brian Van Lankveldt (arriving at 
5:47pm) 

Board Excused: Trustee Rosie Sprangers  
 
Others Present: Clerk-Treasurer Jennifer Weyenberg (VOK), Administrator/Director of Public 

Works Danielle Block (VOK), Administrator Beau Bernhoft (LC) 
     
President’s Remarks     
None 
   
Approval of Minutes from the 03/24/2025 Meeting     
Trustee M. Trentlage moved, Trustee L. Hammen seconded the motion to approve. Motion carried 
by unanimous vote of the boards.     
 
Public Participation 
None 
 
Closed Session 
Trustee N. Karner moved, Trustee L. Hammen seconded the motion to enter closed session 
pursuant to State Statute 19.85(1)(e) to conduct specific public business in which competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session regarding the intergovernmental police services 
agreement. Motion carried by unanimous vote of the boards at 5:31pm.  
 
Trustee L. Hammen moved, Trustee T. Gaffney seconded the motion to reconvene into open 
session pursuant to section 19.85(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes. Motion carried by unanimous vote 
of the boards at 6:30pm.  
 
No action was taken on the closed session matters.  
 
 
 



2 
 

Adjournment     
Trustee L. Hammen moved, Trustee M. Trentlage seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 
by unanimous vote of the boards at 6:33pm.      
 
      

__________________________________ 
Jennifer Weyenberg 
Clerk-Treasurer 
Village of Kimberly 

 
Dated 07/21/25   
Approved by Village Board: _______________     



 

2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

107



 
 
 

2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

108



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

109



 
 

 

 

2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

110



2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

111



�����������	
� �����������

 �����
����� �����
����� 	���
������ ���
��
��	���
������� �������� 
������
������ 	���
������ �����
��
���
��
��
�������	���
�� �������
������	���
� �����
��
���
��
��
��
������
������������
��������
�
������
������������
	��
��
��
�����������������������
���
��������� !"���������
�����
���������	
�
������
��������

��������������� !"����#$$%&'�
#(($'��)*('��+$#,'��*--$'.'/(%$��'01#,'��'1'/*'234567772 89:8;9<=�<>?�@AB�8:ACB; 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� 5������������������������������ 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� 5������������������������������� 6DEFG63������������������������� 6DEFG63����������������� HIC@J3K @AB�LMNO�PQR�:STUVUWXM�BQSYTO�ZS[[LMWMYTUL�\QNMRUVM�]SM�TQ�ZTUPPXYV�ẐQRTUVMZ�#$$%&'�
#(($'��)*('��+$#,'��*--$'.'/(%$��'01#,'�
_-'/̀'2345E6333523a B:b<9>B<c>A�d;9@CB;d 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� 5������������������������������ 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� e������������������������������� 26EF74G������������������������� 26EF74G����������������� HIC@J3K :STUVUWXM�BQSYTO�ZS[[LMWMYTUL�\QNMRUVM�]SM�TQ�ZTUPPXYV�ẐQRTUVMZ2345E633352G2 A;f>A�>bI�B:b<Cbf;bB= 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� 5������������������������������ 5������������������������������� 5����������������������������� e������������������������������� 7G3FaEa������������������������� 7G3FaEa����������������� HIC@J3K AMVULF�\QYTXYVMY\O�PQR�U]]XTXQYUL�:B�\QNMRUVM�UY]�PSTSRM�[LUYYXYV�#$$%&'�
#(($'��)*('��+$#,'��*--$'.'/(%$�
_-'/̀' e������������������������������� e����������������������������� e������������������������������ e������������������������������� e����������������������������� e������������������������������� �g�"���������������������������� 6DEFG63����������������� HIC@J3K�#$$%&'�
#(($'��)*('��+$#,'��*--$'.'/(%$��'(��'1'/*'��
_-'/̀'� e������������������������������� e����������������������������� e������������������������������ e������������������������������� e����������������������������� e������������������������������� e�������������������������������������� 5������������������������������ HIC@J3K�����
����
����
��
��
����
�������	�
���
���
������ ���"h�g������������������ ���"�!����������������� ���"�!������������������ �i�"�hg����������������� !"���"�g�������������� ���"��������������������� ���"���������������������������� �%0&'(��#/#.*.�j+0k#/&��%-#(%$����� !"�g�"�h�

lmln�opqoqrst�uvtwsx

yyl



FUNDING FORMULAS FOR INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENTS
                                              JOINT SERVICES

(POPULATION/EQUALIZED VALUE FORMULA)
BUDGET FACTOR
YEAR YEAR LITTLE CHUTE SUM TOTAL

POPULATION EQUALIZED VALUE TOTAL POPULATION EQUALIZED VALUE TOTAL TOTAL POPULATION
2018 2017 6,672 37.78% 495,368,300 39.10% 38.44% 10,987 62.22% 771,569,100 60.90% 61.56% 100.00% 17,659
2019 2018 6,686 37.55% 524,142,700 37.37% 37.46% 11,120 62.45% 878,465,300 62.63% 62.54% 100.00% 17,806
2020 2019 6,700 37.32% 561,813,100 37.11% 37.21% 11,253 62.68% 952,165,700 62.89% 62.79% 100.00% 17,953
2021 2020 7,137 37.40% 599,222,500 37.10% 37.25% 11,947 62.60% 1,015,966,200 62.90% 62.75% 100.00% 19,084
2022 2021 7,422 37.21% 679,562,800 38.36% 37.79% 12,525 62.79% 1,091,901,000 61.64% 62.21% 100.00% 19,947
2023 2022 7,526 38.13% 771,052,200 38.77% 38.45% 12,213 61.87% 1,217,830,100 61.23% 61.55% 100.00% 19,739
2024 2023 7,608 38.47% 892,730,500 37.90% 38.18% 12,168 61.53% 1,462,895,500 62.10% 61.82% 100.00% 19,776
2025 2024 7,659 38.64% 939,330,400 37.11% 37.87% 12,164 61.36% 1,592,020,500 62.89% 62.13% 100.00% 19,823
2026 2025 7,675 38.65% 1,055,044,300 37.40% 38.03% 12,182 61.35% 1,765,878,400 62.60% 61.97% 100.00% 19,857

0.16% -0.16%

KIMBERLY



ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT TITLE ACTUAL 2023 ACTUAL 2024 BUDGET 2025
 AMENDED 

BUDGET 2025 YTD 2025 ESTIMATED 2025 BUDGET 2026

 (INCREASE) 
DECREASE 2025 

BUDGET 

% CHANGE 
2025 

BUDGET BRIEF EXPLANATIONS OF ANY VARIANCE OVER 2.5%
General Fund Revenues
101-34290 CROSSING GUARD REIMBURSEMENT 27,161.74          27,726.42          31,100.00          31,100.00          16,484.33          27,978 31,842                742 2.39%
101-35201 PARKING VIOLATIONS 15,895.00          15,260.00          13,000.00          13,000.00          9,920.00            13,000 12,600                (400) -3.08% Decrease in tickets offset by increase in rates

Crossing Guards
101-52350-102 PART-TIME WAGES 65,119.58          64,331.31          73,581.00          73,581.00          38,563.74          72,500 75,154                1,573 2.14%
101-52350-103 SOCIAL SECURITY 4,981.67            4,921.40            5,629.00            5,629.00            2,950.07            5,546 5,749 120 2.13%
101-52350-204 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 339.00                1,184.00            850.00                850.00                190.00                850 875 25 2.94% increase in hearing test costs
101-52350-218 OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 1,092.45            1,518.29            1,475.00            1,475.00            508.12                1,475 1,475 - 0.00%
Total Crossing Guards 71,532.70          71,955.00          81,535.00          81,535.00          42,211.93          80,371                  83,253                1,718                  2.11% SHOULD NOT EXCEED 2.5% PER INSTRUCTIONS

CONSOLIDATED POLICE SERVICES
Consolidated Police Services Revenue
207-31111 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 2,361,809.00    2,535,126.00    2,722,538.00    2,722,538.00    2,722,538.00    2,722,538            2,181,604          (540,934)            -19.87%
207-33110 FEDERAL AID 51,507.17          4,049.98            2,000.00            2,000.00            1,360.00            3,160 2,000 - 0.00% Ballistic Vest Program
207-33290 OTHER STATE AID 5,168.71            6,668.88            3,000.00            3,000.00            1,802.14            1,802 2,000 (1,000)                 -33.33% Reduction in State  grant programs and ability to participate
207-33310 COUNTY SUBSIDY/AID 38,003.31          16,333.03          13,500.00          13,500.00          1,052.43            9,360 2,000 (11,500)              -85.19% Staff unlikely to sign up due to local service demands for OT
207-33321 POLICE SERVICES - KIMBERLY 1,494,459.21    1,565,692.00    1,659,464.00    1,659,464.00    1,244,598.00    1,659,464            1,338,816          (320,648)            -19.32%
207-33322 LOCAL SCHOOL SERVICES 179,955.12        174,005.22        162,000.00        162,000.00        98,507.37          170,000                269,273             107,273             66.22% Budgeted at fully loaded rates for 2026
207-33323 CONTRACTED POLICE SERVICE 4,219.72            2,921.78            2,500.00            2,500.00            - 2,500 2,500 - 0.00%
207-34105 COPY FEES (TX) 1,261.25            1,021.76            1,000.00            1,000.00            895.91                1,000 1,000 - 0.00%
207-34990 CASH OVER/(SHORT) - (2.10) - - 0.21 - - - #DIV/0!
207-34201 POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 2,784.11            3,552.89 2,000.00            2,000.00            2,101.56            2,102 2,000 - 0.00%
207-34901 OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2,085.00            1,911.44 1,225.00            1,225.00            1,588.72            1,589 1,225 - 0.00%
207-35301 FALSE ALARMS 1,620.00            1,265.00 1,000.00            1,000.00            1,785.00            1,785 1,000 - 0.00%
207-38301 DONATIONS 17,880.00          11,607.96 - 1,000.00 5,271.80            5,272 - - #DIV/0!
207-38302 K9 DONATIONS 11,221.98          3,725.99 4,000.00            4,000.00 3,557.62            4,000 4,000 - 0.00%
207-38612 INSURANCE REIMBURSEMENT 2,500.00            33,242.05 2,500.00            4,660.00 7,958.55            7,959 - (2,500) -100.00% Lexipol discontinued
207-38621 DAMAGE TO VILLAGE PROPERTY - - - 1,399.00 1,399.00            1,399 - - #DIV/0! Drone reimbursement in 2025
207-38622 OTHER CLAIM REIMBURSEMENT 494.82                - - - 763.00                763 - - #DIV/0!
207-39050 SALE OF VILLAGE PROPERTY 15,731.32          6,870.63            4,000.00            4,000.00            23,616.31          23,616 4,000 - 0.00% Funds have been paid to the state in 2025 for forfeiture share
Total Consolidated Police Services Revenue 4,190,700.72    4,367,992.51    4,580,727.00    4,585,286.00    4,118,795.62    4,618,309            3,811,418          (769,309)            -16.79%

Police Services Consolidated Expenses - #DIV/0!
207-52120-100 FULL-TIME WAGES 480,343.91        557,093.87        559,013.00        559,013.00        309,162.21        474,396                427,824             (131,189)            -23.47%
207-52120-101 FULL-TIME WAGES 1,618,024.53    1,711,496.09    1,824,220.00    1,824,220.00    1,044,799.91    1,818,595            1,559,452          (264,768)            -14.51%
207-52120-102 CLERICAL WAGES 153,988.75        171,235.29        210,419.00        210,419.00        102,704.44        142,905                202,687             (7,732)                 -3.67%
207-52120-103 SOCIAL SECURITY 186,382.41        199,598.34        210,233.00        210,233.00        118,377.25        201,344                178,627             (31,606)              -15.03%
207-52120-104 RETIREMENT 310,181.54        348,382.01        374,380.00        374,380.00        216,021.59        358,305                314,697             (59,683)              -15.94%
207-52120-105 HEALTH INSURANCE 351,652.76        404,526.85        470,378.00        470,378.00        278,584.21        432,668                380,742             (89,636)              -19.06%
207-52120-106 PHYSICAL FITNESS 22,000.00          19,000.00          23,000.00          23,000.00          - 19,000 18,000                (5,000)                 -21.74%
207-52120-107 LIFE INSURANCE 2,680.47            2,729.61            2,436.00            2,436.00            1,718.36            2,758 2,052 (384) -15.76%
207-52120-108 DENTAL INSURANCE 32,332.01          31,882.52          34,371.00          34,371.00          19,143.84          30,244 29,910                (4,461)                 -12.98%
207-52120-109 DISABILITY INSURANCE 4,752.45            4,855.70            4,378.00            4,378.00            2,860.23            4,410 3,797 (581) -13.27%
207-52120-110 OVERTIME 184,516.86        185,121.05        111,900.00        111,900.00        104,742.46        194,742 111,900             - 0.00%
207-52120-111 OVERTIME - CLERICAL - - - - 65.66 100 - - #DIV/0!
207-52120-112 POLICE COMMISSION 1,200.00            850.00                1,680.00            1,680.00            600.00                1,200 1,680 - 0.00%
Subtotal Personnel 3,348,055.69    3,636,771.33    3,826,408.00    3,826,408.00    2,198,780.16    3,680,667            3,231,368          (595,040)            -15.55%

207-52120-201 TRAINING & CONFERENCES 17,610.60          19,095.17          20,100.00          20,100.00          12,643.70          20,000 21,600                1,500 7.46% Officer participating education reimbursement as allowed by 
207-52120-203 TELEPHONE 20,829.86          20,660.21          22,000.00          22,000.00          13,188.07          22,000 19,200                (2,800)                 -12.73% cancellation of CL evidence internet connection
207-52120-204 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 132,402.93        138,227.30        145,195.00        145,195.00        101,083.81        139,500                119,105             (26,090)              -17.97% better price on body cameras and removal of CL rental fees
207-52120-205 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 18,618.26          7,357.87            5,800.00            5,800.00            252.17                4,000 4,800 (1,000)                 -17.24% reduced body camera replacement as getting new cameras
207-52120-206 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,189.67            1,200.24            2,000.00            2,000.00            336.90                1,500 2,000 - 0.00%
207-52120-207 PRINTING & REPRODUCTION 5,387.08            4,998.25            6,700.00            6,700.00            3,323.48            5,300 5,800 (900) -13.43% better copy machine lease rate

2026 FVMPD Budget Submittal Revised



207-52120-208 BOOKS,SUBSCRIPTION, MEMBERSHIP 26,751.56          13,679.68          15,355.00          15,355.00          15,290.04          15,355 855 (14,500)              -94.43% cancellation of Lexipol
207-52120-212 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 19,745.79          22,720.41          22,410.00          22,410.00          20,394.65          21,500 17,920                (4,490)                 -20.04% reduction in staff and not hiring to replace
207-52120-213 SAFETY EQUIPMENT 118,723.56        19,126.37          14,250.00          21,858.00          13,365.02          21,858 14,250                - 0.00%
207-52120-218 OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 13,297.58          13,224.84          19,400.00          19,400.00          5,225.09            14,800 15,600                (3,800)                 -19.59% reducing award budget and lowering NNO budget
207-52120-221 SMALL OFFICE EQUIPMENT 6,690.72            11,738.03          17,500.00          18,500.00          12,179.93          16,000 6,700 (10,800)              -61.71% Windows 11 update was completed in 2025
207-52120-223 GUNS & AMMUNITION 14,577.54          8,032.12            15,250.00          15,250.00          6,993.42            13,000 11,350                (3,900)                 -25.57% reduction of one Taser, no optics or lights needed
207-52120-225 RECRUITMENT, TESTING 4,125.99            7,372.00            4,450.00            4,450.00            3,121.00            4,450 4,700 250 5.62% increase in cost of hearing testing
207-52120-226 POSTAGE 2,042.74            2,266.72            2,400.00            2,400.00            1,815.07            2,400 2,400 - 0.00%
207-52120-227 PUBLIC SERVICE PROGRAM - - 250.00                250.00                - 250 250 - 0.00%
207-52120-228 EMPLOYEE BONDS 161.55                - 300.00 300.00                126.00                300 300 - 0.00%
207-52120-230 WORKERS COMPENSATION INS 70,379.78          60,941.58          66,121.00 66,121.00          41,875.00          54,611 56,800                (9,321)                 -14.10% 4% increase/experience ratio impact
207-52120-231 PROPERTY & LIABIITY INSURANCE 53,446.00          54,831.00          67,378.00 67,378.00          45,506.00          59,209 62,200                (5,178)                 -7.69% Property 5% increase while liability at 3%
207-52120-236 K9 UNIT 11,521.98          4,018.55            4,030.00 4,030.00            3,693.75            5,000 4,490 460 11.41% must renew Ace Watch Dog (multi year subscription)
207-52120-240 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 10,286.49          19,415.14          29,000.00 29,000.00          18,454.23          29,000 71,800                42,800                147.59% CJIS Audit adjustments, new server, new evidence server
207-52120-242 BLDG & GRNDS REPAI/MAINTENANCE 11,385.12          5,618.42            6,145.00 6,145.00            511.40                6,000 6,145 - 0.00%
207-52120-243 CUSTODIAL - CONTRACTUAL 15,305.44          15,022.27          17,100.00 17,100.00          8,900.64            15,800 17,100                - 0.00%
207-52120-244 CUSTODIAL-OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 650.40                1,215.96            1,625.00 1,625.00            556.60                1,625 1,625 - 0.00%
207-52120-245 CUSTODIAL - EQUIP REPAIR/MAINT 13,525.94          - 5,560.00 5,560.00            682.00                5,400 5,560 - 0.00%
207-52120-247 VEHICLE OPERATIONS 72,923.95          103,818.20        84,000.00 89,623.00          44,869.38          89,623 74,000                (10,000)              -11.90% Reduction for fuel
207-52120-248 VEHICLE EQUIPMENT 3,799.56            57,041.03          900.00 900.00                1,077.00            1,077 5,400 4,500 500.00% Two mdc's per replacement schedule
207-52120-249 UTILITIES 15,994.80          15,062.87          18,100.00 18,100.00          10,582.00          17,100 18,100                - 0.00%
207-52120-262 LEGAL/AUDIT 2,492.70            14,115.33          10,000.00 10,000.00          4,251.83            10,000 10,000                - 0.00% Contract renewal
207-52120-301 NEW EQUIPMENT - - - - - - - #DIV/0!
207-52120-302 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT - - - 15,500.00          - 15,500 - - #DIV/0! Furnace replacement in 2025
207-52120-303 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT 105,610.18        121,750.43        130,000.00        130,000.00        125,153.17        125,153 - (130,000) -100.00% Suspend vehicle replacement while discussions occur for term
207-52120-306 BUILDING & GROUNDS - - - 30,622.00          17,642.75          17,643 - #DIV/0!
  Subtotal Supplies and Services 789,477.77        762,549.99        753,319.00        813,672.00        533,094.10        754,954.00          580,050             (173,269) -23.00% SHOULD NOT EXCEED 2.5% PER INSTRUCTIONS
Total Police Services Consolidated Expenses 4,137,533.46    4,399,321.32    4,579,727.00    4,640,080.00    2,731,874.26    4,435,621.00      3,811,418          (768,309)            -16.78%






	10-20-2025 agenda Joint Mtg.pdf
	7-21-2025 Board Minutes - Joint Mtg w LC.pdf
	FVMPD 2026 Budget Documents.pdf

